
 

Response to Questions 

Request for Proposal: Technical Assistance for  
Planning Oklahoma’s Early Childhood Integrated Data System 

 
Question 1. In all cases where the RFP requirements states “days” (rather than “working days”), do these 
include non-working days as well (i.e. weekends and holidays)? For example: the Draft Data Integration 
Plan must be submitted 30 days following acceptance of data inventory – these days would also include 
weekends and holidays? 

Response 1. Yes, in all instances where the requirements states “days” these are calendar days 
not working days. However, upon award, OPSR will negotiate with the Contractor when 
federally designated or religious holidays fall within the specified timeframe and/or the due 
date falls on a weekend or holiday if requested by the Contractor upon award.  

Question 2. Should the contractor assume that OK’s 10 working day review of the contractor’s 
deliverable(s), plus an additional 10 working days to adjust the deliverable, be a) included in the review 
period between the draft and final plans, or b) additive to the review period between the draft and final 
plans? For example: should these 10-20 working days be counted as part of the conversion of the draft 
data integration plan into a final plan, or would they be in addition to this time period? 
 

Response 2. The OPSR review of the deliverable will be additive to the period for submission of 
the final deliverable. 

 
Question 3. How many days will OK take to review a second submission of a deliverable (if necessary)? 
Should this additional time be included within the review cycle or is it additive (per the previous 
question)? 
 

Response 3. OPSR will review a second submission of a deliverable within ten (10) working days. 
In the event of such occurrence, OPSR will negotiate with the contractor to revise the due date 
of the deliverable.   

 
Question 4. Will the contractor be expected to absorb all delays outside of the contractor’s control 
within the RFP’s stated deadline requirements? Or in these instances can the contractor extend deadlines 
via a change-control process?  
 

Response 4. OPSR will negotiate with the contractor to revise deadline for circumstances that 
create delays outside of the contractor’s control. OPSR recognizes that deliverables that are 
dependent upon responses from or participation by external partners may result in delays. OPSR 
staff will provide support to ensure external partners are responsive. OPSR will not hold the 



contractor responsible for deadlines missed due to these factors provided documentation is 
provided in advance of such circumstances.  

 
Question 5. Is there any flexibility on the timelines included in the request for proposal? 

Response 5. It is our intent that contractors make every attempt to adhere to the deadlines as 
stated in the RFP. Due to the tight time-frame allotted for expenditure of the Preschool 
Development Grant B-5 and in anticipation of a subsequent grant application to be announced 
this summer, OPSR requires sufficient information to inform development of an integrated data 
system. OPSR will negotiate deadlines with the contractor upon award and during project 
implementation when 1) holidays occur within the timeframe allotted or weekends fall on due 
dates, 2) delays are created beyond the contractor’s control and/or 3) the Administration for 
Children and Families approves a no-cost extension to extend grant activities beyond December 
30, 2019.  

 

NOTE: See 13. GENERAL INFORMATION FOR CONTRACTORS 13.2 Term of Contract. Any Contract Award, 
which is a result of this solicitation, shall be effective on the date of award through December 30, 2019. 
OPSRF shall have the option to issue a no cost extension under the same terms and conditions if federal 
funding is available and allowable for such extension.      


